ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 18, 2014
1:36 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson
Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lesil MQ@ire, Vice Chair
Senat or Donal d 4 son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 370(L&C)

"An Act relating to enployer-required drug testing; requiring
the Al aska W rkers' Conpensation Board to adopt regulations
relating to the prescription of controlled substances to
enpl oyees; and relating to the prescription of controlled
substances to enpl oyees."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 45
"An Act relating to harassnent, intimdation, or bullying by
students attending a public school in the state.”
- PENDI NG WAI VER OF UNI FORM RULE 23
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 370
SHORT TI TLE: WORKERS COWP: CONTRCOLLED SUBSTANCES
SPONSOR(s): LABOR & COMMERCE

03/ 03/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 03/ 14 (H) L&C, JUD

03/ 19/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 19/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 26/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 26/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 26/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 18, 2014



04/ 04/ 14 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 04/ 14 (H Moved CSHB 370(L&C) Qut of Committee
04/ 04/ 14 (H M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 07/ 14 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 1DP 4NR 1AM

04/ 07/ 14 (H DP: OLSON

04/ 07/ 14 (H NR: CHENAULT, HERRON, REI NBOLD, SADDLER
04/ 07/ 14 (H AM  JOSEPHSON

04/ 07/ 14 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

04/ 07/ 14 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>

04/ 11/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 11/ 14 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

04/ 14/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 14/ 14 (H Moved CSHB 370(L&C) Qut of Committee
04/ 14/ 14 (H M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 15/ 14 (H JUD RPT CS(L&C) NT 1DP 4NR

04/ 15/ 14 (H DP: KELLER

04/ 15/ 14 (H NR: PRU TT, LEDOUX, GRUENBERG, LYNN
04/ 16/ 14 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 16/ 14 (H VERSI O\ CSHB 370( L&C)

04/ 17/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 17/ 14 (S) JuD

04/ 18/ 14 (S) JUD AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

ANNA LATHAM St af f

Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 370 on behal f of the sponsor.

M KE MONAGLE, Director

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent ( DOLVD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions and provided information
related to HB 370.

DON ETHERI DGE

Al aska State AFL-CI O

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 370.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director
Governnmental and Legislative Affairs
Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 18, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered supporting comments for HB 370.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:36:48 PM

CHAIR JOHN COGHI LL <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:36 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dyson, Wel echowski, and Chair Coghill.

HB 370- WORKERS COVP:  CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

1:38: 01 PM

CHAI R COGHI LL announced the consideration of HB 370. "An Act
relating to enployer-required drug testing; requiring the Al aska
Wor kers' Conpensation Board to adopt regulations relating to the
prescription of controlled substances to enployees; and relating
to the prescription of controlled substances to enployees.”
[ CSHB 370(L&C) was before the committee.]

1:38: 08 PM

ANNA LATHAM Staff, Representative Kurt dson, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, sponsor of HB 370, explained that
the purpose of the legislation was to address the overuse and
abuse of opiates and the escalating cost of prescription drugs
in workers' conpensation

She di scussed the follow ng sectional analysis:

Section 1. Anends AS 23.10.620; An enployer may
require an enployee to be drug tested for a controlled
substance prescribed to the enployee, if the enployee
has been prescribed a controlled substance listed in
schedule 1A for nore than 90 days as the result of a
wor kers’ conpensation claim A negative test result
may result in the denial of future paynents for the
control |l ed substance by the enpl oyer.

Section 2. Amends AS  23. 30. 005; The Wbrkers’
Conmpensation Board shall adopt regulations relating to
the prescription of controlled substances to inplenent
AS 23.30095 (p) and (q).

Section 3. Amends AS 23.30.095; A physician nmay not
prescribe nore than a 30 day supply of a controlled
substance listed in schedule | A under AS 11.71.140, or
a controlled opium substances in schedule I11A under
11.71.160, or schedule VA wunder AS 11.71.180. An

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 18, 2014



enployer may not be liable for future paynents of
schedule [|A controlled substances prescribed to an
enpl oyee if the enployee receives a negative drug test
result.

1:41: 38 PM
SENATOR DYSON referenced subsection (g) in Section 1 and asked
what a negative test shows and neans.

M5. LATHAM acknow edged that it was counterintuitive to | ook for
a negative result and explained that it shows that the enployee
isn't taking the prescription. Presumably they don't need it for
pai n managenent, which is a good indication that the enployee is
on the way to returning to work. She noted that the House Labor
and Conmerce Committee added sone sideboards to protect
enpl oyees.

SENATOR DYSON commented that the bill was |ooking for sonebody
who wasn't taking the prescription because it had been over
prescribed. The inplication is that they're selling the drug or
making it avail able to sonebody el se.

M5. LATHAM agr eed.

1:43: 44 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the workers' conpensation |aw says
that enployers are to be notified of treatnent that enployees
are receiving.

M5. LATHAM replied an adjuster would comonly handle the claim
not the enpl oyer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that the |anguage on page 1,
lines 7-8 says "an enployer nmay require an enployee to undergo
drug testing.” He asked if it was her understanding that it is
probably a violation of H PAA for enployers to be aware that
enpl oyees on workers' conpensation are receiving controlled
subst ances.

M5. LATHAM replied workers' conpensation is exenpt from H PAA
requirenents.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if adjusters typically share nedica
treatments with an enpl oyer

M5. LATHAM deferred to M. Mbonagl e.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 18, 2014



1:44:54 PM

MKE MONAGLE, Director, Division of Wrkers' Conpensation

Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent (DOLWD), Juneau,
Al aska, explained that enployers generally don't stay briefed on
a particular claim but enployers that are self-insured tend to
pay closer attention. He noted that workers' conpensation |aw
broadly defines enployer to include their insurance conpany or
cl ai ms adm ni strator.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI questioned giving enployers the authority
to require a drug test when enployers generally don't know
what's going on in a workers' conpensation case. He asked if
that was a fair statement.

MR. MONAGLE answered yes and restated the statutory definition
of enpl oyer under workers' conpensation | aw.

CHAIR COGHILL asked if that mght be characterized as the
enpl oyer's del egation responsibility.

MR. MONAGLE agreed that the insurer has authority to investigate
and adjust clains. He said that about 20 percent of enployers
are self-insured and they tend to have risk managers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if an enployer can only require a
test for the specific drug that was prescri bed.

MS. LATHAM answered yes; that sideboard was added in the House
Labor and Commerce committee substitute (CS).

1:48: 30 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI conmented that the provision was an odd
policy approach because it seens to encourage a person to keep
taking prescription drugs even when they're no |onger needed

The enpl oyee who stops taking the drug because he/she is feeling
better is cut off from their workers' conpensation benefit if
they're tested and the results show they're not taking the drug.

M5. LATHAM clarified that the enployer would not be obligated to
pay for future prescriptions if the test was negative and the
prescription was in excess of 90 days. If the enpl oyee was stil
in pain, he/she would have to contact their provider who would
be able to wite another prescription.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked what happens in the situation where

pain cones and goes. The person gets a 30 supply and takes it
for 10 days. They stop taking it and the enployer tests them on

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 18, 2014



day 15 and they don't have the OxyContin in their system The
enpl oyee is cut off from the drug and then starts feeling pain
agai n.

M5. LATHAM of fered her understanding that the entire clai mwould
not be controverted, just paynent for the prescription.

CHAI R COGHI LL noted that M. Monagl e agreed.

1:51: 22 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked who had opposed this |egislation.

M5. LATHAM said the mnority voiced concerns when the bill was
on the House fl oor.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the sponsor worked with doctors in the
pai n managenent busi ness.

IVS. LATHAM said she hadn't wrked wth doctors on the
legislation and hadn't received letters of support or
opposi tion.

SENATOR DYSON asked if she solicited infornmation.

M5. LATHAM replied there were hearings in House Labor and
Commerce and there was the ability to conment at that tine.

SENATOR DYSON expressed concern with the response, conmenting on
doctors that overprescribe and the street value of prescription
drugs. He observed that the bill tries to keep workers
conpensation from paying for drugs that aren't indicated by
di agnosi s.

CHAIR COGHI LL sunmarized that workers' conpensation doesn't want
to pay for a drug if an enployee isn't using it, but if the
enpl oyee is using the drug workers' conpensation will continue
to pay for it. He comented that the doctor may have a problem
if he/she is witing prescriptions and they're not being used as
prescri bed.

1:54: 30 PM

MR, MONAGLE said the bill does two things. First, it says the
enpl oyer may test for those |long-term users of opiates. Second,
it makes the enployee get back in touch with their doctor and
l[imts the prescription to 30 days. He said he views the bill as
hel ping foster comrunication between the injured worker and

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 18, 2014



their doctor so they can stop taking the drug and return to
wor K.

CHAI R COCGHI LL asked if this was based on nodel |egislation.

MS. LATHAM affirned that the bill was based on nodel |egislation
that other states are inplenenting.

1:58: 04 PM

SENATOR DYSON expressed disappointnment that the sponsor didn't
seek comment from the nedical comunity because he didn't see
how they could object to the bill. He recapped M. Mbnagle's
testinmony that the bill allows the enployer to require the test
after 90 days, which isn't allowed under existing statute.

CHAI R COGHI LL noted that M. Mpnagle nodded in agreenent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked Ms. Lat ham what type of drug testing
she envi si oned.

M5. LATHAM replied the test would be a urinalysis.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that one website says that opiates
stay in the blood systemfor up to 12 hours.

M5. LATHAM noted that information in the packets indicates that
the tineframe is between 12 and 24 hours.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if this law would cut off forever a
person who tests negative because they didn't take their
prescription opiate for 13 hours.

M5. LATHAM replied the person would need to make contact wth
their doctor who would determne whether or not those pain
nmedi cations were still needed. She noted that the docunentation
in the packet shows that Oxycodone stays in the system for 2-4
days, norphine 48-72 hours, and codei ne 48 hours.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI requested a list of all the schedule [A
drugs and how long they stay in the bloodstream because his
online search indicates that opiates stay in the system for up
to 12 hours.

M5. LATHAM acknow edged that the docunentation she provided
provides different tinme constraints.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 18, 2014



SENATOR WELECHOWNSKI read the following |anguage found in
subsection (q) on page 2, lines 11-14:

(q) An enployer or insurer nmay not be liable for
future paynents for a controlled substance listed in
schedule [|A under AS 11.71.140 prescribed to an
enpl oyee under this section if the enployee receives a
negative test result under AS 23.10.620(Q).

He pointed out that under that |anguage, insurance conpani es and
enpl oyers are not liable if an enpl oyee, who has chronic pain as
a result of their job, receives a negative result on an
enpl oyer-required drug test. This goes too far, he said.

MR. MONAGLE clarified that under the Wrkers' Conpensation Act,
an enployer cannot stop benefit paynents to an injured worker
unless they controvert. That is a witten notification to the
enpl oyee that the enployer is stopping a particular benefit. The
enployer is subject to penalties and interest if the benefit is
found at hearing to have been unfairly or frivolously denied. He
offered his opinion that the Wrkers' Conpensation Board would
likely say it was an unfair or frivolous controversion if the
enpl oyee tested negative after they stopped taking the drug for
a few days because they felt fine. He further opined that he
didn't believe that enployers would be willy-nilly in denying
benefits and that the bill would foster conversation and further
eval uation. He said that studies show that 70 percent of injured
workers are prescribed opiates for pain nedication, but
continuing to take high doses of opiates over the long termis
not the answer for chronic pain issues.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI said that as a former workers' conpensation
hearing officer who has done several hundred of these cases, he
respectfully disagrees with M. Mnagle's analysis of the |aw
He said it's very clear that this bill may result in the denia
of future paynents when a drug test is negative. Once there is a
doctor's analysis that the test result is negative, the enployer
doesn't have to worry about a claim that it was a frivolous
controversion. He asked M. Monagle if he disagreed.

MR. MONAGLE answer ed no.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI said the | anguage in subsection (g) on page
2, lines 11-14, is very clear. It significantly changes the |aw
and treats every injured worker as though they're a crimnal and
every doctor as though they're illegally prescribing opiates. He
described the |aw as a huge net that will catch a few bad actors

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 18, 2014



and a lot nore innocent people who are in pain because they were
giving their lives to their enployer. He stressed that this was
the wong policy call.

2:06:32 PM
SENATOR DYSON di sagreed. He maintained that the law was
perm ssive and that the enployee could continue to get the
prescription if their doctor said it was necessary. This
protects the enployer in the scenario that Senator W el echowski
descri bed.

CHAI R COGHI LL noted that Ms. Lathamindi cated she agreed.

2:08: 05 PM

DON ETHERI DGE, Al aska State AFL-CIO, Juneau, Alaska, said the
union had concerns with HB 370 initially, but is now able to
support the |egislation because of the sideboards added in the
House Labor and Conmerce Conmittee. The current bill doesn't
assune that enployees who test negative are selling their
prescription drug. Also, the entire claim can't be controverted
if the test result is negative, just the paynent for the drug
that the enpl oyee isn't taking.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked if his expectation was that a negative test
would send the enployee back to their doctor; it would not
controvert the entire claim

MR. ETHERI DGE answered yes.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director, Governnental and Legislative
Affairs, Teansters Local 959, Anchorage, Al aska, stated that she
would like to go on record as not opposed to the current version
of HB 370. Although | abor hasn't enbraced the bill, she said the
si deboards provide a positive opportunity to get injured workers
to continue to work wth their physician. She offered her
understanding that the enployer would be the insurance carrier
who would be involved in nonitoring the ongoing injury and
ensuring that the injured worker noves forward in a nore
controlled manner than may happen now. To the extent that the
bill helps get an injured worker back on the job, Local 959 is
supportive, she said.

2:13:54 PM

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if there was relief to the injured worker
agai nst an overly aggressive insurance conpany that repeatedly
deni ed cl ai ns.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 18, 2014



MS. LATHAM deferred the question to M. Mbonagl e.

MR. MONAGLE said insurance conpanies respond on a case-by-case
basis and sonme do better than others. If a worker finds their
i nsurance conpany i s non-responsive, they can file a perfornmance
conplaint with the D vision of Insurance. The renedy for an
injured worker whose benefits have been cut off by their
i nsurance conpany is to file a claim and ask for a hearing
before the Wrkers' Conpensati on Board.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the injured worker could get their
benefit reinstated if their doctor notified the insurance
conpany that they needed to continue the prescription drug.

M5. LATHAM offered her understanding that the doctor would be
able to work with the injured enployee before the claim was
controvert ed.

MR. MONAGLE said he believes that in nbst cases the enployer
woul d nmake a reasonable paynent for the prescription if the
injured enployee returned to the doctor and the doctor notified
the enployer that he/she was witing another prescription for
the pain nedication. Case law indicates that there could be
consequences for an enployer who continues to resist or deny
benefits when a doctor says they're needed, he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI continued to maintain that this |aw doesn't
say that. The | anguage on page 1, lines 11-13, gives an enpl oyer
the option of denying future paynents when it says:

A negative test result under this subsection for a
controlled substance prescribed to the enployee may
result in the denial of future paynents by the
enployer or insurer for the controlled substance
prescribed to the enployee but nmay not result in any
ot her adverse enpl oynent acti on.

The | anguage in subsection (gq) on page 2, lines 11-14, says the
followwng for an enployer or insurer who chooses to exercise
t hat option:

(90 An enployer or insurer nmay not be |liable for
future paynents for a controlled substance listed in
schedule IA wunder AS 11.71.140 prescribed to an
enpl oyee under this section if the enployee receives a
negative test result under AS 23.10.620(Q).

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 18, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he believes it's very clear, but if
he's wong he'd like it stated on the record.

2:19:42 PM
M5. LATHAM agreed it was an enpl oyer option.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stressed that a doctor is not involved once
an enployee receives a negative result on a drug test. Under
current workers' conpensation law, an injured enployee is
allowed to receive pain killing prescription drugs for the rest
of his life. This bill for ever takes the enployer off the hook
for paying for these prescription drugs if the injured enployee
doesn't take the prescription for a few days.

SENATOR DYSON agreed that the bill |eaves a clear option for the
enpl oyer who is |ooking for an opportunity to get out of the
obligation of paying. He conceded that Senator Welechowski's
poi nt was |egitinmate.

CHAIR COGHILL said it's also a legitimte point that schedule I A
drugs are not intended to be used to mtigate chronic pain.

MS. LATHAM poi nted out that an enployer who was no |longer |iable
for future paynments for a schedule IA drug could still be liable
for future paynents for other pain relievers that wuld be
effective in treating pain.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said it would be helpful to hear from a
doct or about how they prescribe drugs for chronic pain. He also
asked how often an enpl oyer could test an enpl oyee.

MS. LATHAM said that wasn't defined in the bill.

2:23.:58 PM
CHAI R COCGHI LL recessed the neeting to a call of the chair.

5:48: 38 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL reconvened the neeting and announced the conmmttee
would stay in recess until 9:00 a.m Saturday norning 4/19/14.
[ The committee did not reconvene therefore, HB 370 was held in
comittee.]

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 18, 2014



